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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of LADDERUP WEALTH MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of LADDERUP WEALTH MANAGEMENT
PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2024, the statement of profit
and loss (including other comprehensive ioss), the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for
‘the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, a summary of the S|gn|f|cant accounting policies
and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “standalone financial statements”)!

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid- '
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133.
of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS") and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, its prof“t
and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.’

Basis for Opinion v
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the.
Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the audit of the standalone financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements. '

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, weré of most significance in our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Reporting of key audit matters as per SA 701, Key Audit Matters are not applicable to the Company as it is an unlisted
company.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
Board's Report but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The Board's
Report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Board’s Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to
communicate the matter to those charged with governance and describe actions applicable in the applicable laws and
regulations. We have nothing to report in this regard. ' '

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance, statement of changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the
Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
d design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
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presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s -

ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease .
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements ‘

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If- we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are .
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in aggregate,
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone financial
statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of
our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements
in the standalone financial statements

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.
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Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

1.

As
Ind

required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of
ia in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the "ANNEXURE A’ a statement on the

matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(@)

(b)

(©

(d)

(e)

®

(9)

(h)

iv.

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books;

The balance sheet, statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive loss), the statement of cash
flows and statement of changes in equity dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024 and taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controis over financial reporting of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, the reporting under section 143(3)(i) read with notification No. G.S.R.
583(E) dated 13th June, 2017 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company as the turnover of
the Company as per latest audited standalone financial statement is less than rupees fifty crores or the
aggregate borrowings from banks or financial institutions or body corporate at any point of time during the
financial year is less than rupees twenty five crores and hence auditor is not required to report under this
clause.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's report in accordance with the requirements of
the sub-section 16 of Section 197 of the Act, as amended:

The Company being a Private Limited Company, the provisions of Section 197 read with schedule 5 to the Act
are not applicable to the Company and hence reporting under Section 197 (16) is not required.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us:

The Company does not have any pending litigations on its financial position- Refer note 34 to the financial
statements.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts on which there were any
material foreseeable losses- Refer note 46 to the financial statements.

. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
by the Company- Refer note 47 to the financial statements.

A) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in Note 43
to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any
other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediaries shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
company(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

B) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in Note 43,
no funds have been received by the company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities
("Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

C) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the

circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representation

under sub-clause (A) and (B) contain any material misstatement.
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V. No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting software for
maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any
instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with.

For SHAH GUPTA & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 109574W

Vedula Prabhakar Sharma
Partner

Membership No.: 123088
UDIN: 24123088BKAROP2793

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 23, 2024
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the books of account and
records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that:

(0

(i)

(i)

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of property, plant and equipment.

(B) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by
us, the Company does not have intangible assets. Accordingly, clause 3(i)(a)(B) is not applicable to the
Company.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its PPE by which PPE are verified in a
phased manner over a period of three years. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. In accordance with this
programme, certain PPE were verified during the year by the Management. According to the information
and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The Company does not own any immovable properties and, hence reporting under clause 3(i)(c) of the
Order is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us, the Company
has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or
both during the year.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding
benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and Rules made thereunder.

(a) The Company’s nature of business does not require holding of any inventories. Accordingly, the clause
3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, at any point of time of the year, the Company
has not been sanctioned any working capital facility from banks or financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets, and hence reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has in earlier years granted loans to a related party. During the year, the Company has not
granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to firms or limited liability partnership or any other parties during the
year. The investments made by the Company during the year, are not prejudicial to its interest. According to the
information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company,
the Company has not provided guarantee or security or advances in nature of loans to companies, firms, limited
liability partnership or any other parties during the year.

(@) (A) Based on audit procedures carried out by us and as per the information and eXpIanations given to
us, the Company has granted unsecured loans related party as below:

Zin Lakh
Sr. No. | Loans (unsecured) to related party
(1) Aggregate amount granted during the year -
(2) Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date 50

Also refer Notes 11, to the standalone financial statements.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures conducted by
us, the investments made by the Company, during the year, are not prejudicial to its interest. During the
year the Company has not provided guarantees, provided security and granted loans and advances in the
nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, in our opinion, in the case of loans given, the repayment of principle and payment
of interest has been stipulated and the repayments or receipts have been regular. Further, the Company
has not given any advances in the nature of loans to any party during the year.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
rds of the Company, there is no overdue amount for more than ninety days in respect of loans and
es in the nature of loans given.
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(iv)

)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, there is no loan or advance in the nature of loans granted falling due during the
year, which has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans or
advances in the nature of loans given to same parties.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with
the provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the investments made by it.

The Company has not granted any loans, provided any guarantee or security to the parties covered under
section 185 and has not granted any loans, provided any security or guarantee under section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has neither accepted any deposit from
the public nor accepted any amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76
of the Companies Act and rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under section 148(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013, for the business activities carried out by the Company. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues
including provident fund, Income-Tax, Cess, Goods and Service Tax and other material statutory dues
applicable to it to the appropriate authorities.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, no amounts deducted/accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed
statutory dues including provident fund, Income-Tax, Cess, Goods and Service Tax and other material
statutory dues, in arrears as at March 31, 2024 for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, there are no dues of provident fund, Income tax, Cess, Goods and Service Tax
and other material statutory dues which have not been deposited as at March 31, 2024 on account of any
disputes.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of
the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as income
in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, as income during the year.
Accordingly, clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of
the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment
of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

(¢) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us by the management, term
loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the financial
statements of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-
term purposes by the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the financial
statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or
person on account of or to meet the obligations of its joint venture. The Company did not have any

idiary and associate companies during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not
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(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we report that
the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its joint venture. The
Company did not have any subsidiary and associate companies during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(f)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer including debt
instruments. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance
with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations
given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the
Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the
Management.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of Section 143
of the Act has been filed by us in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried out in accordance
with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations
given to us, and as represented to us by the management, no whistle-blower complaints have been
received during the year by the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly,
clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company,

The Company is not required to constitute an audit committee as per the provisions of section 177 of the Act
and rules framed thereunder. In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the
Company has complied with the provisions of section 188 of the Act, where ever applicable and the details of
such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by applicable accounting
standards.

The Company is not covered by Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013, related to appointment of internal
auditors, hence the Company is not required to appoint any internal auditors. Accordingly, clause 3(xiv) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into
non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors. Accordingly, clause 3(xv) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not conducted non-banking financial/housing finance activities during the year.
Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve
Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of audit, the Group does
not have any CICs. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii} :[‘,} e-has.
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here-has.been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(xviii) of the Order
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(xix)

(xx)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios (Also refer
Note 42 to the financial statements), ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of
financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the
date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state
that this is not ‘an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that
all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date will get discharged by the
Company as and when they fall due.

The provisions relating to Corporate Social Responsibility under Section 135 of the Act are not applicable to the
Company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

For SHAH GUPTA & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 109574W

Vedula Prabhakar Sharma

Partner

Membership No.: 123088
UDIN: 24123088BKAROP2793

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 23, 2024
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LADDERUP WEALTH MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED

Standalone Balance Sheet
as at 31st March 2024
( in lakh)
. As at As at
sl NoteNo. 31 March2024 31 March 2023
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 2 51.11 12.25
Right of use assets 3 167.27 166.10
Other intangible assets 4 367.00 367.00
Financial assets
- Other financial assets 5 123 2.19
Non-current tax assets (net) 6 1.76 1.76
Total non-current assets 588.36 549.30
Current assets
Financial assets
- Investments 7 444.11 356.69
- Trade receivables 8 146.17 130.67
- Cash and cash equivalents 9 185.60 92.45
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 10 343 3.16
- Loans 11 50.00 70.00
- Other financial asset 12 2438 1829
Other current assets 13 25.95 24.79
Total current assets 879.64 696.05
Total assets 1,468.00 1,245.35
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 14 20.00 20.00
Other equity 15 977.99 756.92
Total equity 997.99 776.92
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 16 22.52 -
Lease liabilities 17 124.19 133.75
Provisions 18 28.35 24.63
Other non - current financial liabilities 19 - 30.00
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 20 58.35 44.57
Total non-current liabilities 233.41 232.95
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 21 8.64 -
Lease liabilities 17 5547 3829
- Trade payables 22
Total outstanding dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises - 0.12
Total outstanding dues to creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 30.12 4897
- Other financial liabilities 23 51.28 96.35
Other current liabilities 24 54.45 41.83
Provisions 25 9.64 821
Current tax liabilities (net) 26 27.00 1.70
Total financial liabilities 236.60 235.47
Total equity and liabilities 1,468.00 1,245.35
Significant accounting policies, key accounting estimates and judgements 1
See accompaning notes to the statements 2-49

In terms of our report of even date attached

For Shah Gupta & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 109574

Ce%hakar Sharma

Partner
Membership Number: 123088

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 23, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

S\

Sunil Goyal
Director
DIN : 00503570

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 23, 2024

~

A

Raghvendra Nath
Managing Director
DIN : 03577330




LADDERUP WEALTH MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
Standalene Statement of Profit and Loss
for the Period ended 31st March, 2024

(X in lakh except EPS)

. Year ended Year ended
Particulars
NoteNO. 31 March2024 31 March 2023

Income
Revenue from operations 27 1,071.57 831.41
Other income 28 106.15 157.92
Total income 1,177.72 989.32
Expenses
Employee benefit expenses 29 497.36 539.19
Finance costs 30 19.65 16.14
Depreciation and amortization expenses 2,3&4 66.77 45.67
Other expenses 31 285.20 274.06
Total expenses 868.99 875.07
Profit before tax 308.74 114.25
Less : Tax expense

- Current tax 71.84 17.57

- Deferred tax 14.29 14.62

- Taxation of earlier years 0.06 (3.59)
Total tax expenses 86.20 28.60
Net profit after tax 222.54 85.65
Other comprehensive income / (loss)
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss (net of tax)

- Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligation (1.47) (3.66)
Total other comprehensive income / (loss) (1.47) (3.66)
Total comprehensive income 221.07 81.99
Earnings per equity share (face value T 10 each) 32
Basic (in ) 111.27 42.83
Diluted (in %) 111.27 42.83
Significant accounting policies, key accounting estimates and judgements 1
See accompaning notes to the statements 2-49

In terms of our report of even date attached

For Shah Gupta & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 10957

e

Vedula Prabhakar Sharma
Partner
Membership Number: 123088

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 23, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

By,
e (b—A W
Sunil Goyal / Raghvendra Nath
Director \ / Managing Director

DIN : 00503570 DIN : 03577330

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 23, 2024




LADDERUP WEALTH MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity
for the period ended 31st March, 2024

A) Equity share capital
(1) For the year ended 31 March 2024 (R in lakh)
Changes in equity|Restated balance Changes in equity
Balance as at sh?re ca[.)ltal due tolat the beginning share capital Balance as at
1 April 2023 prior period errors [of the current|during the current 31 March 2024
reporting period |year
20.00 - - - 20.00
(2) For the year ended 31 March 2023 R in lakh)
Changes in Equity|Restated balance Changes in equity
Balance as at Sh.are Ca.pltal due to|at the  beginning shal.'e capital Balance as at
1 April 2022 prior period errors |of the current during the current 31 March 2023
reporting period |year
20.00 - - - 20.00
B) Other equity (X in lakh)
Reserve & surplus Other c.omprehenswe
income
Particulars ~ Remeasurement of Total equity
Securities . .
remium Retained earnings | post employment
P " benefit obligation
Balance as at 1 April 2022 60.00 617.33 (2.40) 674.93
Profit for the year - 85.65 - 85.65
Other comprehensive income for the year - - (3.66) (3.66)
Balance as at 31 March 2023 60.00 702.98 (6.06) 756.92
Profit for the year - 222.54 - 222.54
Other comprehensive income for the year - - (1.47) (1.47)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 60.00 925.52 (7.53) 977.99
Significant accounting policies, key accounting estimates and judgements 1
See accompaning notes to the statements 2-49

Chartered Accountants

Partner

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 23, 2024

For Shah Gupta & Co.

Firm Registration Number: 109574

Vedula Prabhakar Sharma

Membership Number: 123088

In terms of our report of even date attached

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

, 1 U
j"’“\v—a fJT —) N

Sunil Goyal
Director
DIN : 00503570

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 23, 2024

Raghvendra Nath
Managing Director
DIN : 03577330




LADDERUP WEALTH MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
Standalone Statement of Cash Flow
for the year ended 31 March 2024

(X in lakh)
. Year ended Year ended

 articulars 31 March, 2024 31 March 2023
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Net profit before tax 308.74 114.25
Add / (less) : Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization expenses 66.77 45.67
Finance cost 19.65 16.14
Interest income (9.65) (6.27)
Notional (gain)/loss on value of current investments measured at FVTPL (14.16) 1.33
Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligation (1.47) (3.66)
Operating profit before working capital changes 369.87 167.47
Adjustments for change in working capital :
(Increase) / decrease in trade receivables (15.51) 7.87
(Increase) / decrease in loan 20.00 (20.00)
(Increase) / decrease in other financial assets (5.13) (1.67)
(Increase) / decrease in other non financial assets (1.16) (16.08)
Increase / (decrease) in trade payables (18.97) 522
Increase / (decrease) in provisions 5.15 (0.87)
Increase / (decrease) in other non financial liabilities (30.00) (25.00)
Increase / (decrease) in other financial liabilities (60.70) (38.96)
Increase / (decrease) in other liabilities 12.61 (11.26)
Cash generated from operations 276.18 66.73
Income tax paid (net of refund) (47.11) (37.61)
Net cash inflow from operating activities A) 229.06 - 29.11
B. Cash flow from investing activities
(Purchase)/proceeds of property, plant & equipment (106.79) (215.04)
(Purchase)/ proceeds of deposit 0.27) (0.09)
(Purchase)/proceeds of Intangible assets - (10.00)
(Purchase)/proceeds from investments valued at FVTPL (73.26) 31.68
Interest income 9.65 6.27
Net cash outflow from investing activities B) (170.67) (187.17)
C. Cash flow from financing activities
(Repayment)/proceeds from long-term borrowings (other the debt securities) 31.15 -
Interest paid 4.01) (1.78)
Lease obligation 7.62 172.04
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing activities © 34.76 170.26
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 93.15 12.19
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 92.45 80.25
Closing cash and cash equivalents (refer note 9) 185.60 92.44

Note :

1. The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard - 7 (‘Ind AS 7°) on Cash
Flow Statement prescribed in Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015, notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.

2. Previous year's figures have been regrouped wherever necessary.

For Shah Gupta & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 109574

» . /
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Vedula Prabhakar Sharmt & \FRN ; 100578 ¢
Partner o /=
\ ZoN N/

Membership Number: 123088\ }‘.ﬂ/{\/g\?’/‘
NG

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 23, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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Sunil Goyal
Director

DIN : 00503570

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 23, 2024

Raghvendra Nath
Managing Director
DIN : 03577330




LADDERUP WEALTH MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements

Note 1.1 Corporate information

Ladderup Wealth Management Private Limited (CIN U74140MH2008PTC177491) ("the Company") is domiciled in India and
is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India.

Note 1.2 Significant accounting policies

iv

Basis of preparation
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared to comply in all material respects with the Indian Accounting
Standards ("Ind AS") notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time).

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention with the exception of certain financial assets
and liabilities which have been measured at fair value, on an accrual basis of accounting.

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current and non-current as per normal operating cycle of the Company and
other criteria set out in as per the guidance set out in Schedule III to the Act. Based on nature of services, the Company
ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current and non-current classification of asset and liabilities.

The Company's financial statements are reported in Indian Rupees, which is also the Company’s functional currency.

Accounting estimates
The preparation of the financial statements, in conformity with the Ind AS, requires the management to make estimates and

assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent liabilities as at the date of financial statements and the results of operation during the reported period. Although these
estimates are based upon management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results could differ from these
estimates which are recognized in the period in which they are determined.

Historical cost convention
These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial assets and liabilities which
are measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments).

1. Financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss, if applicable
2. Financial instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, if applicable

Estimates and assumptions
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a

significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.
The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing
circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising
that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes
are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Deferred tax assets
In assessing the realizability of deferred income tax assets, management considers whether some portion or all of the deferred

income tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred income tax assets is dependent upon the generation of
future taxable income during the periods in which the temporary differences become deductible. Management considers the
scheduled reversals of deferred income tax liabilities, projected future taxable income, and tax planning strategies in making this
assessment. Based on the level of historical taxable income and projections for future taxable income over the periods in which
the deferred income tax assets are deductible, management believes that the Company will realize the benefits of those deductible
differences. The amount of the deferred income tax assets considered realizable, however, could be reduced in the near term if
estimates of future taxable income during the carry forward period are reduced.

Property, plant and equipment

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has opted to continue with the carrying values measured under the previous GAAP as at 1
April 2018 of its Intangible Assets and used that carrying value as the deemed cost of the Intangible Assets on the date of
transition i.e. 1 April 2018.

Depreciation/ amortization




LADDERUP WEALTH MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements

vi

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument
of another entity.

a) Financial assets
A financial asset is

(i) a contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset; to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities under
potentially favourable conditions;

(ii) or a contract that will or may be settled in the entity's own equity instruments and a non-derivative for which the entity is or
may be obliged to receive a variable number of the entity's own equity instruments; or a derivative that will or may be settled
other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of the entity's own equity
instruments.

Initial recognition
In the case of financial assets, not recorded at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), financial assets are recognized initially

at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place

(regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date, i.c., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories:

Financial assets at amortized cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost if these financial assets are held within a business model with an
objective to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Impairment

gains or losses arising on these assets are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial assets measured at fair value
Financial assets are measured at fair value through OCI if these financial assets are held within a business model with an

objective to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows or to sell these financial assets and the contractual terms of
the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or
losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial asset not measured at amortized cost or at fair value through OCI is carried at FVTPL.

Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of
impairment loss on financial assets and credit risk exposures.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. Simplified
approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on
lifetime ECL at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has
been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL
is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a
subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. Lifetime ECL are the expected
credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a
of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

aitment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the Statement of
i Loss.

_—



LADDERUP WEALTH MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements

De-recognition of financial assets
The Company de-recognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it

transfers the financial asset and substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Company
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the
Company recognizes its retained interest in the assets and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognize
the financial asset and also recognizes a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.

b) Equity instruments and financial liabilities
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments -

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments which are issued for cash are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Equity
instruments which are issued for consideration other than cash are recorded at fair value of the equity instrument.

Financial liabilities
A financial liability is

(i) a contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or to exchange financial instruments under
potentially unfavourable conditions;

(ii) or a contract that will or may be settled in the entity's own equity instruments and is a non-derivative for which the entity is or
may be obliged to deliver a variable number of its own equity instruments; or a derivative that will or may be settled other than by
the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of the entity's own equity instruments.

Initial recognition

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at FVTPL, loans and borrowings and payables as
appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below

Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial

recognition as at FVTPL. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing

in the near term. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognized initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss
allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognized less cumulative amortization.
Amortization is recognized as finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities at amortized cost

Affer initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR
method. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is
recognized over the term of the borrowings in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
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Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements
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De-recognition of financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are de-recognized when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. When an

existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as de-recognition of the original liability and

recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

¢) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis to realize the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Employee benefits

Defined contribution plan

Contributions to defined contribution schemes such as provident fund, employees’ state insurance, labour welfare are charged as
an expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made as and when services are rendered by the employees. The
above benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company has no further obligations beyond the monthly
contributions.

Defined benefit plan

The company provides for retirement benefits in the form of Gratuity. Benefits payable to eligible employees of the company with
respect to gratuity is accounted for on the basis of an actuarial valuation as at the Balance Sheet date. The present value of such
obligation is determined by the projected unit credit method and adjusted for past service cost and fair value of plan assets as at
the balance sheet date through which the obligations are to be settled.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets (excluding net interest) is reflected
immediately in the balance sheet with a charge/credit recognised in Other Comprehensive Income ("OCI") in the period in which
they occur.

Remeasurements recognised in OCI is not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Leave entitlement and compensated absences

The employees of the company are entitled to compensated absences for which the company records the liability based on
actuarial valuation computed using Projected Unit Credit method. These benefits are unfunded. Leaves under defined benefit
plan can be encashed only on discontinuation of service by employee.

Short-term obligations

Short-term employee benefits such as salaries, wages, performance incentives etc. are recognized as expenses at the undiscounted
amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss of the period in which the related service is reridered. Expenses on non-accumulating
compensated absences is recognized in the period in which the absences occur.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand and cash at bank.

Revenue recognition

Revenue (other than for those items to which Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments are applicable) is measured at transaction value
of the consideration received or receivable. Ind AS 115 Revenue from contracts with customers outlines a single comprehensive
model of accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers and supersedes current revenue recognition guidance
found within Ind AS.

The Company recognizes revenue from contracts with customers based on a five step model as set out in Ind 115:
Step 1: Identify contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more parties that creates
enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteria for every contract that must be met.
Step 2: Identify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise in a contract with a customer to
transfer a good or service to the customer.
Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third
parties.

w~Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract that has more than one
bligation, the Company allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation in an amount that depicts the
eration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange Itisfying each performance obligation.

L/
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LADDERUP WEALTH MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements
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xii

Step 5: Recognize revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation

Brokerage/commission from each Mutual Fund House is recognized by the Company on the basis of the statements generated by
the main registrar on periodic basis.

Distribution income is earned by selling of services and products of other entities under distribution arrangements. The income so
earned is recognised on successful sales on behalf of other entities subject to there being no significant uncertainty of its recovery.

Financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) or fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCTI), as applicable. The Company recognises gains/losses on fair value change of financial assets

measured as FVTPL and realised gains/losses on derecognition of financial asset measured at FVTPL and FVOCI.
In respect of other operational income, the Company follows the practice of accounting on accrual basis.

Income tax
Income tax comprises of current and deferred income tax. Income tax is recognized as an expense or income in the Statement of
Profit and Loss, except to the extent it relates to items directly recognized in equity or in OCL

Current income tax

Current income tax is recognized based on the estimated tax liability computed after taking credit for allowances and exemptions
in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961. Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to
be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are
enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Deferred income tax

Deferred tax is determined by applying the Balance Sheet approach. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for all
deductible temporary differences between the financial statements’ carrying amount of existing assets and liabilities and their
respective tax base. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the enacted tax rates or tax rates that are substantively
enacted at the Balance Sheet date. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in the
period that includes the enactment date. Deferred tax assets are only recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized. Such assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet
date to reassess realization.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset. Current tax assets and tax liabilities
are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

Leases

The company has adopted Ind AS 116-Leases effective 1st April, 2019, using the modified retrospective method. The company
has applied the standard to its leases with the cumulative impact recognised on the date of initial application (1st April, 2019).
The company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for Premises. The company assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the
use of an identified asset, the company assesses whether:

(i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset

(i) the company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and

(iii) the company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the company recognises a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a corresponding lease
liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee,except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short term leases)
and leases of low value assets. For these short term and leases of low value assets, the company recognises the lease payments as
an operating expense on a straight line basis over the term of the lease.

p
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The right-of-use assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any
lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They
are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and
useful life of the underlying asset.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using
the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates. The lease liability is
subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount
to reflect the

lease payments made.

A lease liability is remeasured upon the occurrence of certain events such as a change in the lease term or a change in an index or
rate used to determine lease payments. The remeasurement normally also adjusts the leased assets.Lease liability and ROU asset
have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

Impairment of non-financial assets

As at each Balance Sheet date, the Company assesses whether there is an indication that a non-financial asset may be impaired
and also whether there is an indication of reversal of impairment loss recognized in the previous periods. If any indication exists,
or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company determines the recoverable amount and impairment loss
is recognized when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

Recoverable amount is determined:

- In case of an individual asset, at the higher of the assets' fair value less cost to sell and value in use; and

- In case of cash generating unit (a group of assets that generates identified, independent cash flows), at the higher of cash
generating unit's fair value less cost to sell and value in use.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risk specified to the asset. In determining fair value less cost
to sell, recent market transaction are taken into account. If no such transaction can be identified, an appropriate valuation model
is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognized in the Statement of Profit and
Loss, except for properties previously revalued with the revaluation taken to OCL For such properties, the impairment is
recognized in OCT up to the amount of any previous revaluation.

When the Company considers that there are no realistic prospects of recovery of the asset, the relevant amounts are written off. If
the amount of impairment loss subsequently decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognized, then the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed through the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than
the conversion of potential equity shares, that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding
change in resources.

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company and weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per equity share and also the
weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The
dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity shares been actually issued at fair value
(i.e. the average market value of the outstanding equity shares).

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events and it is

probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions (excluding gratuity and compensated absences) are
determined based on management's estimate required to settle the obligation at the Balance Sheet date. In case the time value of
money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost. These are reviewed at
each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current management estimates.

occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
serit liability also arises, in rare cases, where a liability cannot be gc'ognized becﬁs\e it cannot be measured
/ .
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Contingent assets are disclosed in the financial statements.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other ancillary costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
Borrowing costs also include exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

All borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss except:
a) Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of assets that necessarily takes a substantial period of
time to get ready for its intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of such assets.

b) Expenses incurred on raising long term borrowings are amortised using effective interest rate method over the period of
borrowings.

Investment Income earned on the temporary investment of funds of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Functional currency and foreign currency transactions

(a) Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR/Z), which is the company’s functional and presentation currency.
Foreign currency transactions are recorded and presented in the functional currency by applying the exchange rate between the
functional currency and the foreign currency prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

(b) Translations

On initial recognition, all foreign currency transactions are recorded by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate
between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

All monetary items in foreign currencies are restated at the end of each reporting period at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

Foreign exchange differences arising between the transaction date and the settlement/reporting date are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Rounding of amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakh as per the requirement of
Schedule II1, unless otherwise stated.

Cash flow statement
Cash flow are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before exceptional items and tax is adjusted for the
ansactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash

rating, investing and financing activities of the company are segregated.
A)



LADDERUP WEALTH MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements

Note 2 : Property, plant and equipment (R in lakh)
Particulars Office equipment Computers Motor vehicle Total
Gross carrying value

Balance as at 1 April 2023 3.63 20.84 - 24.47
Additions - 1.59 46.15 © 4773
Deletions - -

Balance as at 31 March 2024 3.63 2243 46.15 72.21

Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at 1 April 2023 0.92 11.30 - 12.22
Additions 0.64 4.32 3.92 8.88
Deletions - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 1.57 15.62 3.92 21.10
Net carrying value

Balance as at 1 April 2023 271 9.55 - 12.25
Balance as at 31 March 2024 . 2.06 6.82 42.23 51.11
Note 3 : Right of use assets (X in lakh)

) Leasehold

Particulars premises
Gross carrying value
Balance as at 1 April 2023 384.20
Additions 59.06
Deletions -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 443.26

Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at 1 April 2023 218.10

Additions 57.89

Deletions -

Balance as at 31 March 2024 275.99

Net carrying value

Balance as at 1 April 2023 166.10

Balance as at 31 March 2024 167.27
N A
- &




LADDERUP WEALTH MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements

Note 4 : Other intangible assets

® in lakh)

Particulars

Business &
commercial rights

Total

Gross carrying value (at deemed cost)
Balance as at 1 April 2023

Additions

Deletions

Balance as at 31 March 2024

Accumulated amortisation
Balance as at 1 April 2023
Additions

Deletions

Balance as at 31 March 2024

Net carrying value
Balance as at 1 April 2023

367.00

367.00

367.00
367.00

367.00

367.00

367.00
367.00




LADDERUP WEALTH MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements

Note 5 : - Other financial assets

Particulars

31 March 2024

(% in lakh)
Particulars Asat As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Unsecured, considered good
- Security deposit 1.23 2.19
Total other financial assets 1.23 2.19
Note 6 : Non-current tax assets (net) (X in lakh)
. As at As at
P: |}
articulars 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
Advance tax & TDS receivable (net of provision for tax) 1.76 1.76
Total current tax asset (net) 1.76 1.76
Note 20 : Deferred tax liabilities (net) (% in lakh
Particulars st As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Deferred tax asset :
Impact of expenditure charged to the statement of profit and loss in the current year but 9.56 827
allowed for tax purposes on payment basis.
Adjustment on lease modification 1.62 1.49
Deferred tax liability
Fixed assets : Impact of difference between tax depreciation and depreciation charged for (65.86) (54.68)
the financial reporting
On account of fair value of financial instruments (3.68) 0.35
Total deferred tax liability (net) (58.35) (44.57)
Note 7 : - Investments (T in lakh
As at As at

31 March 2023

Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss
Quoted :
Investment in mutual funds

Aditya Birla Sunlife Midcap Fund - Direct 34.37 23.25
4,894.293 (31.03.2023 : 4,894.293) units
ICICI Prudential Multicap Fund - Direct Plan - Growth 9.51 -
1234.110 (31.03.2023 : Nil ) units
Investments carried at amortised cost
Unquoted :
Investments in bonds & securities 146.58 225.02
Investment in Joint Venture (cost)
Ladderup Wealth International Limited 253.65 108.41
Total investments 444.11 356.69
Aggregate of current investments: (X in lakh)
Particulars Asat As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Book value of investments 44411 356.69
Cost of investments 415.68 346.76
Note 9 : - Cash and cash equivalents (X in lakh)
Particulars Asat Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Balances with banks
- In current accounts 185.45 92.43
Cash on hand 0.16 0.03
Total cash and cash equivalents 185.60 92.45
Note 10 : Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents (X in lakh)
. As at As at
Particul
artieutars 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
- Fixed deposit with maturity for more than 1 year from date of acquisition* 3.43 3.16
P e ¥
: d}eN\ane cash and cash equivalents 3.43 3.16
* Fi ad o mtlj‘& is Bank Limited against Corporate Credit Card % /<
i) 1
/= / ——
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LADDERUP WEALTH MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements

Note 11 : - Loans

(X in lakh
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Unsecured, considered good
- To related parties ( refer note 36) 50.00 50.00
- To other - 20.00
Total loans 50.00 70.00
Note 12 : - Other financial asset (X in lakh)
Particulars Asat b
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Interest receivable 13.10 6.95
Accrued interest on fixed deposit* - 0.06
Other receivable 11.29 11.29
Total other financial assets 24.38 18.29
* Fixed deposit pledged with Axis Bank Limited against Corporate Credit Card
Note 13 : Other current assets (X in lakh)
Particulars ity Asat .
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Prepaid expenses 20.79 17.95
Advance recoverable in cash or in kind 5.16 6.84
Total other current assets 25.95 24.79




.

LADDERUP WEALTH MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements

Note 14 : Equity share capital (X in lakh)
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Authorised share capital
2,00,000 (31 March 2023: 2,00,000) equity shares of T 10/- each 20.00 20.00
Total authorised share capital 20.00 20.00
Issued, subscribed and full paid
2,00,000 (31 March 2023: 2,00,000) equity shares of ¥ 10/- each, fully paid up 20.00 20.00
Total issued, subscribed and paid-up equity share capital 20.00 20.00

. Reconciliation of the equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year
Particulars As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Number of shares (X in lakh) Number of shares (X in lakh)

Equity shares
At the beginning of the year 2,00,000 20.00 2,00,000 20.00
Shares issued during the year - - - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 2,00,000 20.00 2,00,000 20.00

. Terms/rights attached to equity shares:

(i) The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ¥ 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.

(ii) In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all
preferential amounts, if any. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Shares held by holding company :

(PR /<)
\ //
y

\\ J

N £ éhe Sharehald As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
RNICGEIRETAIERUKICE Number of Shares | (Zinlakh) | Number of Shares | (¥ in lakh)
Ladderup Finance Limited 1,02,000 10.20 1,02,000 10.20
. The details of shareholders holding more than 5% of the equity shares of the company as at year end are as below :
As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
ity shareh : S
Name of the equity shareholder Number of equity | , . holding Number of equity | o . holding
shares held shares held
Ladderup Finance Limited 1,02,000 51% 1,02,000 51%
Raghvendra Nath 66,000 33% 66,000 33%
Ladderup Venture LLP 32,000 16% 32,000 16%
. Shareholding of promoters

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Name:of the promoter Number of shares | % of holding | Number of shares % of holding
Ladderup Finance Limited 1,02,000 51% 1,02,000 51%
Ladderup Venture LLP 32,000 16% 32,000 16%
Note 15 : Other equity (X in lakh)

Other comprehensive
Reserve & surplus
. income .
Particulars : Remeasurement of Total equity
o : Retained
Securities premium earnings post employment
& benefit obligation
Balance as at 1 April 2022 60.00 617.33 (2.40) 674.93
Profit for the year - 85.65 - 85.65
Other comprehensive income for the year - - (3.66) (3.66)
Balance as at 31 March 2023 60.00 702.98 (6.06) 756.92
Profit for the year - 222.54 - 222.54
Other comprehensive income for the year - - (1.47) (1.47)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 60.00 925.52 (7.53) 977.99
Nature and purpose of reserves:
Securities preminm feserve
Securitjé{gﬁ%ﬁﬁum rés;érife:-js used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the pgovision of the Companies Act,
2030/ Ly NN ‘
f[ </ \2 ) &
1 ﬁ \ f) ) \)/, S




LADDERUP WEALTH MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements

Note 16 : Borrowings (X in lakh)
Particulars Asat Asat

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Secured
Vehicle loan (refer note (i) below) 31.15 -
Less : Current maturities 8.64 -
Total borrowings 22.52 -

(i) Vehicle loan from bank

Vehicle loans represents loans taken from HDFC Bank Limited amounting to % 35 Lakh (2023:Z Nil), ¥ 22.52 Lakh disclosed under non-
current borrowings (2023 :Z Nil) and ¥ 8.64 Lakh (2023: % Nil) disclosed under current maturities of long-term debts are secured by

hypothecation of vehicle financed by HDFC bank and carry interest rate of 8.9% p.a (2023: % Nil).

Note 17 : Lease liabilities (% in lakh)
Particular: As at As at
artieutars 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023

Non current 124.19 133.75
Current 55.47 38.29
Total lease liabilities 179.66 172.04
Note 18 : Provisions (X in lakh)
Particulars Asji Asat

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Provision for employee benefits:
Provision for gratuity (refer note 33) 28.35 24.63
Total Provisions 28.35 24.63
Note 19 : Other non - current financial liabilities (X in lakh)
Particulars Anat e

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Other payable - 30.00
Total other non - current financial liabilities - 30.00
Note 21 : Borrowings
Particulars As@e Asat

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Secured
Vehicle loan (refer note 16) 8.64 -
Total current borrowings 8.64 -
Note 23 : - Other financial liabilities (X in lakh)
Particul As at As at

articutars 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023

Employee benefit payable 4191 43.45
Other payable 9.37 52.90
Total other financial liabilities 51.28 96.35
Note 24 : Other current liabilities (X in lakh)
Particulars Asat Asat

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Statutory liabilities 3331 20.10
Advance from customers 21.13 21.73
Total other current liabilities 54.45 41.83
Note 25 : Provisions (X in lakh)
Particulars Asat Asat

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Provision for bonus 1.85 1.61
Provision for gratuity 7.80 6.61
Total provisions 9.64 8.21
Note 26 : Current tax liabilities (net) (X in lakh)
Particulars ASat Asat

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Provisiqn for taxation (net of advance tax and TDS ) 27.00 1.70
Total'current tax liabilities (net) 27.00 1.70

#
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LADDERUP WEALTH MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements

Note 27 : Revenue from operations (X in lakh)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
Brokerage & commission income 1,071.57 - 83141
Total revenue from operations 1,071.57 831.41
Note 28 : Other income (X in lakh)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Gain on bond transaction 72.02 145.88
Short term capital gain on mutual fund - 2.68
Interest received on bond 4.05 1.18
Interest received on loan 9.65 6.27
Interest received on fixed deposit 0.21 0.17
Net gain on fair value changes 14.16 -
Net gain on fair value of bond 6.06 1.73
Total other incomes 106.15 157.92
Note 29 : Employee benefit expenses (R in lakh)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
Salaries & wages 475.57 518.00
Contribution to provident and other fund 8.54 9.02
Office staff welfare expense 13.26 12.17
Total employee benefit expense 497.36 539.19
Note 30 : Finance costs (X in lakh)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Interest expenses on borrowings 1.98 -
Other interest expenses 2.04 1.78
Finance cost on lease obligation 15.63 14.37
Total finance cost 19.65 16.14
Note 31 : Other expenses (X in lakh)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Professional fees 95.30 76.06
Rent 3.53 5.04
Sub-brokerage 26.13 29.51
Business promotion expenses 37.58 28.90
Management service charges 17.82 11.40
Communication cost 4.00 6.18
Electricity 4.14 2.83
Net loss on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss - 1.33
Office expenses 15.28 30.76
Payment to auditors (refer note below 31(a) ) 0.80 0.80
Printing & stationery 3.82 3.10
Financial database services 22.86 22.14
Travelling & conveyance 26.25 29.07
Vehicle maintenance 439 5.89
Sebi registration charges 434 -
Miscellaneous expenses 11.44 21.04
Total other expenses 285.20 274.06
Note 31(a) : Payment to auditors (R in lakh)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
-Statutory audit 0.60 0.80
-Tax audit fees 0.20 -
Total 0.80 0.80
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LADDERUP WEALTH MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements

Note 32 : Earnings per equity share (face vaiue T 10 each)

A reconciliation of profit for the year and equity shares used in the computation of basic and diluted earnings per equity share is set out
below:

Basic: Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the company by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year, excluding equity shares purchased by the company and held as treasury
shares.

Diluted: Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year
for assumed conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Employee share options are dilutive potential equity shares for the company.

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Weighted average number of equity shares of 10 each
Number of shares at the beginning and end of the year (in nos.) 2,00,000 2,00,000
Weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year (in nos.) 2,00,000 2,00,000
Weighted average number of potential equity shares outstanding during the year - -
Total number of potential equity share for calculating diluted earning per share (in nos.) 2,00,000 2,00,000
Net profit after tax available for equity shareholders (% in Lakh) 222.54 85.65
Basic earning per share (in %) 111.27 42.83
Diluted earning per share (in %) 111.27 42.83
4‘7
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LADDERUP WEALTH MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements

Note 33: Disclosure relating to employee benefits as per Ind AS 19 'Employee Benefits'

Defined benefit obligation
Gratuity

The Company provides for the gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering qualifying employees . The plan provides for lump sum
payments to employees upon death while in employment or on separation from employment after serving for the stipulated period mentioned

under The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972.

The present value of obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each
period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final

Details of defined benefit plans as per actuarial valuation are as follows:

(X in lakh)

Particulars Unfunded Plan
Expenses recognized in the statement of profit and loss 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current service cost 5.78 6.95
Net interest cost 2.04 1.78
Components of defined benefit costs recognized in profit or loss 7.82 8.73

(X in lakh)

Included in other comprehensive income 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Components of actuarial gain/losses on obligations:

- financial assumptions 0.44 (3.44)
- demographic assumptions - -

- experience adjustments 1.54 8.39
Actuarial (gain) / loss recognized in OCI 1.98. 4.95

(X in lakh)
Changes in the defined benefit obligation 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Opening defined benefit obligation 31.24 31.85
Transfer in/(out) obligation - -
Current service cost 5.78 6.95
Interest expense 2.04 1.78
Components of actuarial gain/losses on obligations:

- financial assumptions 0.44 (3.44)
- experience adjustments 1.54 8.39
Benefits paid (4.90) (14.29)
Present value of obligation as at the end of the year 36.14 31.24
(X in lakh)
Reconciliation of net defined benefit liability 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Net opening provision in books of accounts 31.24 31.85
Expense charged to Statement of Profit and Loss 7.82 8.73
Amount recognised in other comprehensive income 1.98 495
Benefits paid (4.90) (14.29)
Closing provision in books of accounts 36.14 31.24

(X in lakh)
Bifurcation of liability as per schedule III 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current liability* 7.80 6.61

Non-current liability 28.35 24.63
Net liability 36.14 31.24
* The current liability is calculated as expected benefits for the next 12 months.

Maturity analysis of defined benefit obligation (X in lakh)
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Expected benefits for year 1 7.80 6.61
Distribution (%) 9.60% 9.30%
Expected benefits for year 2 0.94 0.80
Distribution (%) 1.20% 1.10%
Expected benefits for year 3 1.10 0.86
Distribution (%) 1.30% 1.20%
Expected benefits for year 4 1.19 0.96
Distribution (%) 1.50% 1.40%
Expected benefits for year 5 1.30 1.06
Distributien(%) 1.60% 1.50%

dr 0 Year 22.28 21.37
27.40% 30.20%

W’#\
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Expected contribution to fund in the next year (X in lakh)
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Expected contribution to fund in the next year 7.80 6.61

The following table summarizes the principal assumptions used for defined benefit obligation : (X in lakh)
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Actuarial assumptions
Discount Rate (p.a.) 7.15% 7.30%

5.00% p.a at younger| 5.00% p.a at younger

Withdrawal Rates ages reducing to ages reducing to
1.00%p.a % at older| 1.00%p.a % at older,

ages ages

Rate of Salary increase (p.a.) 6.00% 6.00%

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant

factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

Sensitivity to key assumptions (X in lakh)
Particulars Gratuity
31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023

0.5% increase

i. Discount rate 34.71 30.00

ii. Salary escalation rate - over a long-term 36.73 31.80
10% increase

iii. Withdrawal rate (W.R.) 36.39 3143
0.5% decrease

i. Discount rate 37.70 32.59

ii. Salary escalation rate - over a long-term 35.59 30.55
10% decrease

iii. Withdrawal rate (W.R.) 35.88 31.04

Sensitivity for significant actuarial assumptions is computed by varying one actuarial assumption used for the valuation of the defined benefit

obligation, keeping all other actuarial assumptions constant.
Defined contribution plans

Provident Fund

The Company has recognized X 8.54 Lakh (31.03.2023; % 9.02 Lakh) in the statement of Profit & Loss towards contribution to Provident fund

in respect of company employees.

Supreme Court (SC) passed a judgement dated 28th February 2019, related to components of salary structure that need to be taken into account
while computing the contribution to provident fund under the EPF Act. There are numerous interpretative issues relating to the Supreme Court
(SC) judgement including the effective date of application. The Company continues to assess any futher developments in this matter for the

implications on financial statements, if any.

Note 34 : Contingent liabilities disclosures as required under Ind AS 37, “provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets” are

given below:

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Claims not acknowledged as debts :
Liability in respect of income-tax - 0.32

Note 35: Segment Reporting
Segment Reporting as required under Indian Accounting Standard 108, “Operating Segments” :

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”)
of the Company. The CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been

s_the Managing Director of the Company. The Company operates only in one Business Segment i.c. « Invejrﬁ-ent Advisory
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LADDERUP WEALTH MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements

Note 40 : Leases

The firm has entered into long term lease agreements for premises. The firm does not have an option to purchase the leased asset at the
expiry of the lease period. These are generally cancellable and are renewable by mutual consent on mutually agreed terms.Future lease
rentals are determined on the basis of agreed terms. There are no restrictions imposed by lease arrangements. There are no subleases.

Following are the changes in the carrying value of right of use assets for the year ended March 31, 2024:

(X in lakh)
Particulars 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
Opening balance 166.10 -
Addition 59.06 207.60
Adition /adjustments - -
Deletion 57.89 41.50
Closing balance 167.27 166.10
The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities as at March 31,2024 :

(X in lakh)
Particulars 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
Current lease liabilities 55.47 38.29
Non-Current lease liabilities 124.19 133.75

179.66 172.04

The following is the movement in lease liabilities during the year ended March 31, 2024:

(X in lakh)
Particulars 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
Opening balance 172.04 -
Addition /adjustments 59.06 207.60
Finance cost accrued during the period 15.63 14.37
Payment of lease liabilities 67.07 49.93
Closing balance 179.66 172.04

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at March 31, 2024 on an undiscounted basis :

Particulars 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
- Less than one year 55.47 38.29
- Later than one year but not later than five years 124.19 133.75
- Later than five years - -

179.66 172.04
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To,
The Members of LADDERUP WEALTH MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
Report on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements of LADDERUP WEALTH MANAGEMENT
PRIVATE LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company”) and, its joint venture, which comprise the
consolidated balance sheet as at March 31, 2024, and the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive loss), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the
consideration of the other financial information of the joint venture referred to below in the Other Matter section below,
the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (‘Ind
AS’), and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Holding
Company ‘and its joint venture as at March 31, 2024, and their consolidated profit, their consolidated total
comprehensive income, their consolidated changes in equity and their consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the
Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
Reporting of key audit matters as per SA 701, Key Audit Matters are not applicable to the Holding Company as it is an
unlisted company.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Holding Company’s annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial statement
and our auditor’s report thereon. The annual report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's
report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Management Responsibilities and Those Charged with Governance for the for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position, consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive loss, consolidated changes in equity and
consolidated cash flows of the Holding Company including its joint venture in accordance with Ind AS and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India. The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and of its
joint venture are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding the assets of the Holding Company and its joint venture for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and of its
joint venture are responsible for assessing the ability of the Holding Company and of its joint venture to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the management either intends to liquidate or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so. The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and of its joint venture are also responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of the Holding Company and of its joint venture.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Holding
Company and its joint venture to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Holding Company and its joint venture to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
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We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such
entities or business activities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent
auditors. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, individually or in aggregate,
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the consolidated financial
statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of
our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in
the consolidated financial statements. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most

significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters.

We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter.should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Other Matter

The consolidated financial statements also includes the Holding Company's share of net loss after tax of ¥ 104.25 Lakh
and total comprehensive loss of # 104.25 Lakh, for the year ended March 31, 2024, in respect of joint venture, whose
financial information have not been audited by us or by other auditors. These unaudited financial statements/financial
information have been approved and furnished to us by the management and our opinion on the statement, in so far as it
relates to the amount and disclosures included in respect of joint venture, is based solely on such unaudited financial
statements/financial information. In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us by the
Management, these unaudited financial statements/financial information are not material to the Holding Company. Our
opinion on the consolidated financial statements and our Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified

in respect of the above matter with respect to the financial statements / financial information certified by the
management.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, based on our audit and the other financial information of
the joint venture, as noted in the ‘Other Matter’ paragraph we give in the "ANNEXURE A" a statement on the matters
specified in paragraph 3(xxi) of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and the other financial information of joint venture,
referred in the Other Matter paragraph above we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive
loss), consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows dealt with by
this report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financialstatements;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended.
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(e)

®

(9)

(h)

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on March 31,
2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company, none of the directors of the Holding
Company is disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of
the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Holding Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, the reporting under section 143(3)(i) read with notification No.
G.S.R. 583(E) dated 13th June, 2017 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Holding Company as
the turnover of the Company as per latest audited financial statement is less than rupees fifty crores or the
aggregate borrowings from banks or financial institutions or body corporate at any point of time during the
financial year is less than rupees twenty five crores and hence auditor is not required to report under this clause.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's report in accordance with the requirements of
the sub-section 16 of Section 197 of the Act, as amended:

The Holding Company being a Private Limited Company, the provisions of Section 197 read with schedule 5 to
the Act are not applicable to the Holding Company and hence reporting under Section 197 (16) is not required.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Holding Company does not have any pending litigations on its financial position- Refer note 34 to the
financial statements;

ii. The Holding Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts on which there
were any material foreseeable losses- Refer note 46 to the financial statements; and

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Holding Company- Refer note 47 to the financial statements.

iv. A) The respective management of the Holding Company, whose financial statements have been
audited under the Act have represented to us, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the Note 43 to the consolidated financial statements, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company to or in any other persons or entities,
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediaries shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Holding Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

B)  The respective management of the Holding Company, whose financial statements have been
audited under the Act have represented to us, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the Note 43 to the consolidated financial statements, no funds have been
received by the Holding Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities
(*Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Holding Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parties (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries; and

C) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances performed by us, whose financial statements have been audited under the
Act, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (A) and (B) contain any material misstatement.

v. The Holding Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the financial year.
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vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Holding Company has used accounting software
for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any
instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with.

The financial statements of joint venture, have not been audited under the provisions of the Act as of the
date of this report, management certified financial statements is included in the consolidated financial
statements. Therefore, we are unable to comment on the reporting requirement under Rule 11 (g) of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 in respect of associate and joint venture of the subsidiary.

For SHAH GUPTA & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 109574W

Vedula Prabhakar Sharma
Partner

Membership No.: 123088
UDIN: 24123088BKAR0O03841

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 23, 2024
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT OF EVEN DATE

The Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even
date

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the books of account and records
examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that:

xxi. The audit report under Companies (Auditors Report) Order (CARO) reports of these companies has not been
issued till date of our auditor’s report:

Name CIN Holding Company/subsidiary/associate/joint
venture
Ladderup Wealth International Limited Registered No. 5544 Joint venture

For Shah Gupta & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 109574W

G
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Vedula Prabhakar Sharma

A wrr S
Partner LD ACCOZ

Membership No.: 123088
UDIN: 24123088BKAR003841

Sy

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 23, 2024
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LADDERUP WEALTH MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
Consolidated Balance Sheet

as at 31st March 2024
(@ in lakh)
. As at As at
Particulars NoteNo. 31 March2024 31 March 2023
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 2 51.11 12.25
Right of use assets 3 167.27 166.10
Other intangible assets 4 367.00 367.00
Financial assets
- Other financial assets 5 123 2.19
Non-current tax assets (net) 6 1.76 1.76
Total non-current assets 588.36 549.30
Current assets
Financial assets
- Investments 7 248.75 265.58
- Trade receivables 8 146.17 130.67
- Cash and cash equivalents 9 185.60 92.45
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 10 3.43 3.16
- Loans 11 50.00 70.00
- Other financial asset 12 24.38 18.29
Other current assets 13 25.95 24.79
Total current assets 684.29 604.94
Total assets 1,272.65 1,154.24
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 14 20.00 20.00
Other equity 15 782.64 665.81
Total equity 802.64 685.81
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 16 22.52 -
Lease liabilities 17 124.19 133.75
Provisions 18 28.35 24.63
Other non - current financial liabilities 19 - 30.00
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 20 58.35 44.57
Total non-current liabilities 233.41 232.95
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 21 8.64 -
Lease liabilities 17 55.47 38.29
- Trade payables 22
Total outstanding dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises - 0.12
Total outstanding dues to creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 30.12 4897
- Other financial liabilities 23 51.28 96.35
Other current liabilities 24 54.45 41.83
Provisions 25 9.64 8.21
Current tax liabilities (net) 26 27.00 1.70
Total financial liabilities 236.60 235.47
Total equity and liabilities 1,272.65 1,154.24
Significant accounting policies, key accounting estimates and judgements 1
See accompaning notes to the statements 2-49

In terms of our report of even date attached

For Shah Gupta & Co.
Chartered Accountants 7
Firm Registration ‘&\Iumberz 109574»’?' "

W/tv/ N N (, Je
Vedu

- A /
la‘Prabhakar Sharma \ . =Y/
Partner NG rre(i 74 Director
Membership Number: 123088 S

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 23, 2024

Sunil Goyal

DIN : 00503570

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 23, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Raghvendra Nath
Managing Director
DIN : 03577330
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LADDERUP WEALTH MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
for the Period ended 31st March, 2024
(X in lakh except EPS)

. Year ended Year ended
Particulars NoteNo.  3i March2024 31 March 2023
Income
Revenue from operations 27 1,071.57 831.41
Other income 28 106.15 157.92
Total income 1,177.72 989.32
Expenses
Employee benefit expenses 29 497.36 539.19
Finance costs 30 19.65 16.14
Depreciation and amortization expenses 2,3&4 66.77 45.67
Other expenses 31 285.20 274.06
Total expenses 868.99 875.07
Shares of loss of joint venture (104.25) (91.11)
Profit before tax 204.49 23.14
Less : Tax expense

- Current tax 71.84 17.57
- Deferred tax 14.29 14.62
- Taxation of earlier years 0.06 (3.59)
Total tax expenses 86.20 28.60
Net profit after tax 118.29 (5.46)
Other comprehensive income / (loss)
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss (net of tax)

- Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligation (1.47) (3.66)
Total other comprehensive income / (loss) (1.47) (3.66)
Total comprehensive income 116.83 (9.12)
Earnings per equity share (face value ¥ 10 each) 32
Basic (in %) 59.15 2.73)
Diluted (in %) 59.15 (2.73)
Significant accounting policies, key accounting estimates and judgements 1
See accompaning notes to the statements 2-49
In terms of our report of even date attached
For Shah Gupta & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants R XX
Firm Registration Number: 109574W /7,2 N\ -
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edila’Prabhakar Sharma T Sunil Goyal Raghvendra Nath
Partner = Director Managing Director
Membership Number: 123088 DIN : 00503570 DIN : 03577330
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: May 23, 2024 Date: May 23, 2024




LADDERUP WEALTH MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
for the period ended 31st March, 2024

A) Equity share capital

(1) For the year ended

31 March 2024

in lakh)

Balance as at

Changes in equity
share capital due to

Restated balance
at the beginning|share

Changes in equity

capital

Balance as at

1 April 2023 prior period errors |of tl{e current during the current 31 March 2024
reporting period |year
20.00 - - - 20.00
(2) For the year ended 31 March 2023 (X in lakh)

Balance as at

Changes in Equity|Restated balance
Share Capital due to|at the beginning|share

Changes in equity

capital

Balance as at

1 April 2022 prior period errors |of the current|during the current 31 March 2023
P reporting period |year
20.00 - - - 20.00
B) Other equity (X in lakh)
Reserve & surplus Other c'omprehenswe
income
Particulars — Remeasarement of Total equity
Securities . .
remium Retained earnings | post employment
p benefit obligation
Balance as at 1 April 2022 60.00 617.33 (2.40) 674.93
Profit for the year - (5.46) - (5.46)
Other comprehensive income for the year - - (3.66) (3.66)
Balance as at 31 March 2023 60.00 611.87 (6.06) 665.81
Profit for the year - 118.29 - 118.29
Other comprehensive income for the year - - (1.47) (1.47)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 60.00 730.16 (7.53) 782.64
Significant accounting policies, key accounting estimates and judgements 1
See accompaning notes to the statements 2-49

In terms of our report of even date attached

For Shah Gupta & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 109574W

_—

Veduli Prabhakar Sharma

Partner

Membership Number: 123088

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 23, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Director

Sunil Goyal

DIN : 00503570

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 23, 2024

Raghvendra Nath
\ Managing Director
DIN : 03577330




LADDERUP WEALTH MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
Standalone Statement of Cash Fiow
for the year ended 31 March 2024
(X in lakh)
Year ended Year ended
31 March, 2024 31 March 2023

Particulars

A. Cash flow from operating activities

Net profit before tax 204.49 23.14
Add / (less) : Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortization expenses 66.77 45.67
Finance cost 19.65 16.14
Interest income (9.65) 6.27)
Notional (gain)/loss on value of current investments measured at FVTPL (14.16) 1.33
Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligation (1.47) (3.66)
Operating profit before working capital changes 265.63 76.36

Adjustments for change in working capital :

(Increase) / decrease in trade receivables (15.51) 7.87

(Increase) / decrease in loan 20.00 (20.00)
(Increase) / decrease in other financial assets (5.13) (1.67)
(Increase) / decrease in other non financial assets (1.16) (16.08)
Increase / (decrease) in trade payables (18.97) 522

Increase / (decrease) in provisions 5.15 (0.87)
Increase / (decrease) in other non financial liabilities (30.00) (25.00)
Increase / (decrease) in other financial liabilities (60.70) (38.96)
Increase / (decrease) in other liabilities 12.61 (11.26)
Cash generated from operations : 171.93 (24.38)
Income tax paid (net of refund) (47.11) (37.61)
Net cash inflow from operating activities A) 124.82 (62.00)

B. Cash flow from investing activities

(Purchase)/proceeds of property, plant & equipment (106.79) (215.04)
(Purchase)/ proceeds of deposit 0.27) (0.09)
(Purchase)/proceeds of Intangible assets - (10.00)
(Purchase)/proceeds from investments valued at FVTPL 30.99 122.79
Interest income 9.65 6.27
Net cash outflow from investing activities (B) (66.43) (96.06)

C. Cash flow from financing activities

(Repayment)/proceeds from long-term borrowings (other the debt securities) 31.15 -
Interest paid (4.01) (1.78)
Lease obligation 7.62 172.04
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing activities © 34.76 170.26
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 93.15 12.19
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 92.45 80.25
Closing cash and cash equivalents (refer note 9) 185.60 92.44
Note :

1. The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard - 7 (‘Ind AS 7°) on Cash
Flow Statement prescribed in Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015, notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.

2. Previous year's figures have been regrouped wherever necessary.

For Shah Gupta & Co. smmm— For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants <

Firm Registratjon Number: 109574W 7 N2\ ) | NJU
| ! ‘j Y \‘v ™ —

.,\‘ S\ //
/’i ,,/ .-’J (/

Vedula Prabhakar Sharma — Y, / Sunil Goyal Raghvendra Nath

Partner L Director Managing Director

Membership Number: 123088 DIN : 00503570 DIN : 03577330

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: May 23, 2024 Date: May 23, 2024




LADDERUP WEALTH MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Note 1.1 Corporate information
Ladderup Wealth Management Private Limited (CIN U74140MH2008PTC177491) ("the Company") is domiciled in India and is
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India.
These consolidated financial statements of the Company also include the Joint Venture which is incorporated under the Companies
Law, DIFC Law No. 5 of 2018 (the "companies Law") with registration number 5544.

Note 1.2 Significant accounting policies

i Basis of preparation
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared to comply in all material respects with the Indian Accounting
Standards ("Ind AS") notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time).

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention with the exception of certain financial assets and
liabilities which have been measured at fair value, on an accrual basis of accounting.

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current and non-current as per normal operating cycle of the Company and
other criteria set out in as per the guidance set out in Schedule III to the Act. Based on nature of services, the Company ascertained
its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current and non-current classification of asset and liabilities.

The Company's financial statements are reported m Indian Rupees, which is also the Company’s functional currency.

ii Accounting estimates
The preparation of the financial statements, in conformity with the Ind AS, requires the management to make estimates and

assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent liabilities as at the date of financial statements and the results of operation during the reported period. Although these
estimates are based upon management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results could differ from these
estimates which are recognized in the period in which they are determined.

iii Historical cost convention
These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial assets and liabilities which are
measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments).

1. Financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss, if applicable
2. Financial instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, if applicable

Estimates and assumptions
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a

significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. The
Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing
circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising
that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes
are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Deferred tax assets

In assessing the realizability of deferred income tax assets, management considers whether some portion or all of the deferred
income tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred income tax assets is dependent upon the generation of
future taxable income during the periods in which the temporary differences become deductible. Management considers the
scheduled reversals of deferred income tax liabilities, projected future taxable income, and tax planning strategies in making this
assessment. Based on the level of historical taxable income and projections for future taxable income over the periods in which the
deferred income tax assets are deductible, management believes that the Company will realize the benefits of those deductible
differences. The amount of the deferred income tax assets considered realizable, however, could be reduced in the near term if
estimates of future taxable income during the carry forward period are reduced.

iv Property, plant and equipment
On transition to Ind AS, the Company has opted to continue with the carrying values measured under the previous GAAP as at 1
April 2018 of its Intangible Assets and used that carrying value as the deemed cost of the Intangible Assets on the date of transition
i.e. 1 April 2018.

n on property plant and equipments is provided on *Straight Lipﬁ} Method’ considering the useful lives and their residual
{/

ided in Schedule I of Companies Act, 2013. X
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LADDERUP WEALTH MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

vi

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that glves rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of
another entity.

a) Financial assets
A financial asset is

(i) a contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset; to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities under potentially
favourable conditions;

(ii)) or a contract that will or may be settled in the entity's own equity instruments and a non-derivative for which the entity is or may
be obliged to receive a variable number of the entity's own equity instruments; or a derivative that will or may be settled other than
by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of the entity's own equity instruments.

Initial recognition
In the case of financial assets, not recorded at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), financial assets are recognized initially at

fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way

trades) are recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories:

Financial assets at amortized cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost if these financial assets are held within a business model with an
objective to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance income using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Impairment gains or losses

arising on these assets are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial assets measured at fair value
Financial assets are measured at fair value through OCI if these financial assets are held within a business model with an objective

to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows or to sell these financial assets and the contractual terms of the
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal -and interest on the principal amount
outstanding. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses,
interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial asset not measured at amortized cost or at fair value through OCI is carried at FVTPL.

Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of
impairment loss on financial assets and credit risk exposures.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. Simplified approach
does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime
ECL at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been
a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used
to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period,
credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
then the entity reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. Lifetime ECL are the expected credit
losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of

‘.;the:l‘ifeﬁme ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ofit and\Loss, |
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LADDERUP WEALTH MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements
De-recognition of financial assets
The Company de-recognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers

the financial asset and substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Company neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company
recognizes its retained interest in the assets and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognize the
financial asset and also recognizes a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.

b) Equity instruments and financial liabilities
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments which are issued for cash are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Equity
instruments which are issued for consideration other than cash are recorded at fair value of the equity instrument.

Financial liabilities
A financial liability is

(i) a contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or to exchange financial instruments under
potentially unfavourable conditions;

(ii) or a contract that will or may be settled in the entity's own equity instruments and is a non-derivative for which the entity is or
may be obliged to deliver a variable number of its own equity instruments; or a derivative that will or may be settled other than by
the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of the entity's own equity instruments.

Initial recognition

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at FVTPL, loans and borrowings and payables as
appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net
of directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below

Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition

as at FVTPL. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near

term. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder
for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognized initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss
allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognized less cumulative amortization.
Amortization is recognized as finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities at amortized cost

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method.
Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognized over
the term of the borrowings in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition ‘and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.




LADDERUP WEALTH MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

vii

viii

De-recognition of financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are de-recognized when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. When an

existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as de-recognition of the original liability and

recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

¢) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis to realize the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Employee benefits

Defined contribution plan

Contributions to defined contribution schemes such as provident fund, employees’ state insurance, labour welfare are charged as an
expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made as and when services are rendered by the employees. The above
benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company has no further obligations beyond the monthly
contributions.

Defined benefit plan

The company provides for retirement benefits in the form of Gratuity. Benefits payable to eligible employees of the company with
respect to gratuity is accounted for on the basis of an actuarial valuation as at the Balance Sheet date. The present value of such
obligation is determined by the projected unit credit method and adjusted for past service cost and fair value of plan assets as at the
balance sheet date through which the obligations are to be settled.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains‘and losses and the return on plan assets (excluding net interest) is reflected
immediately in the balance sheet with a charge/credit recognised in Other Comprehensive Income ("OCI") in the period in which
they occur.

Remeasurements recognised in OCI is not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Leave entitlement and compensated absences

The employees of the company are entitled to compensated absences for which the company records the liability based on actuarial
valuation computed using Projected Unit Credit method. These benefits are unfunded. Leaves under defined benefit plan can be
encashed only on discontinuation of service by employee.

Short-term obligations

Short-term employee benefits such as salaries, wages, performance incentives etc. are recognized as expenses at the undiscounted
amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss of the period in which the related service is rendered. Expenses on non-accumulating
compensated absences is recognized in the period in which the absences occur.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand and cash at bank.

Revenue recognition

Revenue (other than for those items to which Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments are applicable) is measured at transaction value of
the consideration received or receivable. Ind AS 115 Revenue from contracts with customers outlines a single comprehensive model
of accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers and supersedes current revenue recognition guidance found within
Ind AS.

The Company recognizes revenue from contracts with customers based on a five step model as set out in Ind 115:

Step 1: Identify contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more parties that creates
enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteria for every contract that must be met.

Step 2: Identify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise in a contract with a customer to
transfer a good or service to the customer.

Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third
parties.

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract that has more than one
performance obligation, the Company allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation in an amount that depicts the
amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying each performance obligation.

gnize revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation

i mmission from each Mutual Fund House is recognized by the Company on the basis of” ﬁ))e statements generated by
gistrar on periodic basis. ' .

N



LADDERUP WEALTH MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

xi

xii

Distribution income is earned by selling of services and products of other entities under distribution arrangements. The income so
earned is recognised on successful sales on behalf of other entities subject to there being no significant uncertainty of its recovery.

Financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) or fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVOCI), as applicable. The Company recognises gains/losses on fair value change of financial assets measured as FVTPL

and realised gains/losses on derecognition of financial asset measured at FVTPL and FVOCL
In respect of other operational income, the Company follows the practice of accounting on accrual basis.

Income tax
Income tax comprises of current and deferred income tax. Income tax is recognized as an expense or income in the Statement of
Profit and Loss, except to the extent it relates to items directly recognized in equity or in OCL

Current income tax

Current income tax is recognized based on the estimated tax liability computed after taking credit for allowances and exemptions in
accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961. Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted
or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Deferred income tax

Deferred tax is determined by applying the Balance Sheet approach. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for all
deductible temporary differences between the financial statements’ carrying amount of existing assets and liabilities and their
respective tax base. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the enacted tax rates or tax rates that are substantively
enacted at the Balance Sheet date. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in the period
that includes the enactment date. Deferred tax assets are only recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized. Such assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date to
reassess realization.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset. Current tax assets and tax liabilities
are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

Leases
The company has adopted Ind AS 116-Leases effective Ist April, 2019, using the modified retrospective method. The company has

applied the standard to its leases with the cumulative impact recognised on the date of initial application (1st April, 2019).

The company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for Premises. The company assesses whether a contract is or contains
a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset, the company assesses whether:

(i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset

(ii) the company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and

(iii) the company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the company recognises a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a corresponding lease liability
for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee,except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short term leases) and leases
of low value assets. For these short term and leases of low value assets, the company recognises the lease payments as an operating
expense on a straight line basis over the term of the lease. {



LADDERUP WEALTH MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements
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The right-of-use assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease
payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and
useful life of the underlying asset.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using
the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates. The lease liability is
subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to
reflect the

lease payments made.

A lease liability is remeasured upon the occurrence of certain events such as a change in the lease term or a change in an index or
rate used to determine lease payments. The remeasurement normally also adjusts the leased assets.Lease liability and ROU asset
have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

Impairment of non-financial assets

As at each Balance Sheet date, the Company assesses whether there is an indication that a non-financial asset may be impaired and
also whether there is an indication of reversal of impairment loss recognized in the previous periods. If any indication exists, or
when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company determines the recoverable amount and impairment loss is
recognized when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

Recoverable amount is determined:

- In case of an individual asset, at the higher of the assets' fair value less cost to sell and value in use; and

- In case of cash generating unit (a group of assets that generates identified, independent cash flows), at the higher of cash
generating unit's fair value less cost to sell and value in use.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risk specified to the asset. In determining fair value less cost to
sell, recent market transaction are taken into account. If no such transaction can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is
used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognized in the Statement of Profit and
Loss, except for properties previously revalued with the revaluation taken to OCL For such properties, the impairment is recognized
in OCI up to the amount of any previous revaluation.

When the Company considers that there are no realistic prospects of recovery of the asset, the relevant amounts are written off. If
the amount of impairment loss subsequently decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognized, then the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed through the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the
conversion of potential equity shares, that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change
in resources.

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company and weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per equity share and also the
weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The
dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e.
the average market value of the outstanding equity shares).

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events and it is

probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions (excluding gratuity and: compensated absences) are
determined based on management's estimate required to settle the obligation at the Balance Sheet date. In case the time value of
money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost. These are reviewed at
each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current management estimates.

{abilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events, whose existence would be
J by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
gontingent liability also arises, in rare cases, where a liability cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured

A
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xxi

Contingent assets are disclosed in the financial statements.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other ancillary costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
Borrowing costs also include exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

All borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss except:
a) Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of assets that necessarily takes a substantial period of time
to get ready for its intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of such assets.

b) Expenses incurred on raising long term borrowings are amortised using effective interest rate method over the period of
borrowings.

Investment Income earned on the temporary investment of funds of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Functional currency and foreign currency transactions

(a) Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR/Z), which is the company’s functional and presentation currency.
Foreign currency transactions are recorded and presented in the functional currency by applying the exchange rate between the
functional currency and the foreign currency prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

(b) Translations

On initial recognition, all foreign currency transactions are recorded by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate
between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

All monetary items in foreign currencies are restated at the end of each reporting period at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

Foreign exchange differences arising between the transaction date and the settlement/reporting date are recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

Rounding of amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakh as per the requirement of
Schedule III, unless otherwise stated.

Cash flow statement

Cash flow are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before exceptional items and tax is adjusted for the effects
of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from
operating, investing and financing activities of the company are segregated.
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Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Note 2 : Property, plant and equipment (X in lakh)
Particulars Office equipment Computers Motor vehicle Total
Gross carrying value

Balance as at 1 April 2023 3.63 20.84 - 24.47
Additions - 1.59 46.15 47.73
Deletions - -

Balance as at 31 March 2024 3.63 2243 46.15 72.21

Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at 1 April 2023 0.92 11.30 - 12.22
Additions 0.64 432 3.92 8.88
Deletions - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 1.57 15.62 3.92 21.10
Net carrying value

Balance as at 1 April 2023 2.71 9.55 - 12.25
Balance as at 31 March 2024 2.06 6.82 42.23 51.11
Note 3 : Right of use assets (R in lakh)

N Leasehold

Particulars premises
Gross carrying value
Balance as at 1 April 2023 384.20
Additions 59.06
Deletions -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 443.26

Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at 1 April 2023 218.10
Additions 57.89
Deletions -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 275.99
Net carrying value

Balance as at 1 April 2023 166.10
Balance as at 31 March 2024 167.27




LADDERUP WEALTH MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Note 4 : Other intangible assets

 in lakh)

Particulars

Business &
commercial rights

Total

Gross carrying value (at deemed cost)
Balance as at 1 April 2023

Additions

Deletions

Balance as at 31 March 2024

Accumuiated amortisation
Balance as at 1 April 2023
Additions

Deletions

Balance as at 31 March 2024

Net carrying value
Balance as at 1 April 2023
Balance as at 31 March 2024

367.00

367.00

367.00
367.00

367.00

367.00

367.00
367.00

g




LADDERUP WEALTH MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Note 5: - Other financial assets (X in lakh)
Particulars Asat A8 RE
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Unsecured, considered good
- Security deposit 1.23 2.19
Total other financial assets 1.23 2.19
Note 6 : Non-current tax assets (net) (X in lakh)
Particulars Asat Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Advance tax & TDS receivable (net of provision for tax) 1.76 1.76
Total current tax asset (net) 1.76 1.76
Note 20 : Deferred tax liabilities (net) (X in lakh)
As at As at

Particulars

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Deferred tax asset :

Impact of expenditure charged to the statement of profit and loss in the current year but 9.56 8.27
allowed for tax purposes on payment basis.
Adjustment on lease modification 1.62 1.49
Deferred tax liability
Fixed assets : Impact of difference between tax depreciation and depreciation charged for (65.86) (54.68)
the financial reporting
On account of fair value of financial instruments (3.68) 0.35
Total deferred tax liability (net) (58.35) (44.57)
Note 7 : - Investments (X in lakh)
Particulars Ans As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss
Quoted :
Investment in mutual funds
Aditya Birla Sunlife Midcap Fund - Direct 34.37 2325
4,894.293 (31.03.2023 : 4,894.293) units
ICICI Prudential Multicap Fund - Direct Plan - Growth 9.51 -
1234.110 (31.03.2023 : Nil ) units
Investments carried at amortised cost
Unquoted :
Investments in bonds & securities 146.58 225.02
Investment in Joint Venture (cost)
Ladderup Wealth International Limited 58.30 17.30
Total investments 248.75 265.58
Aggregate of current investments: (X in lakh)
Particulars Asat Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Book value of investments 248.75 265.58
Cost of investments 415.68 346.76
Note 9 : - Cash and cash equivalents (X in lakh)
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Balances with banks
- In current accounts 185.45 92.43
Cash on hand 0.16 0.03
Total cash and cash equivalents 185.60 92.45
Note 10 : Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents (X in lakh)
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
- Fixed deposit with maturity for more than 1 year from date of acquisition* 343 3.16
ther thane cash and cash equivalents 3.43 3.16

ith Axis Bank Limited against Corporate Credit Card
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LADDERUP WEALTH MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the lidated financial statements

Note 11 : - Loans

(X in lakh)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Unsecured, considered good

- To related parties ( refer note 36) 50.00 50.00
- To other - 20.00
Total loans 50.00 70.00
Note 12 : - Other financial asset (X in lakh)
Particulars As at ASAt
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Interest receivable 13.10 6.95
Accrued interest on fixed deposit* - 0.06
Other receivable 11.29 11.29
Total other financial assets 24.38 18.29
* Fixed deposit pledged with Axis Bank Limited against Corporate Credit Card
Note 13 : Other current assets (% in lakh)
Particulars Asat i
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Prepaid expenses 20.79 17.95
Advance recoverable in cash or in kind 5.16 6.84
Total other current assets 25.95 24.79
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LADDERUP WEALTH MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Note 14 : Equity share capital (X in lakh)
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Authorised share capital
2,00,000 (31 March 2023: 2,00,000) equity shares of % 10/- each 20.00 20.00
Total authorised share capital 20.00 20.00
Issued, subscribed and full paid
2,00,000 (31 March 2023: 2,00,000) equity shares of % 10/- each, fully paid up 20.00 20.00
Total issued, subscribed and paid-up equity share capital 20.00 20.00

- Reconciliation of the equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

Particulars As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Number of shares (X in lakh) Number of shares (X in lakh)

Equity shares

At the beginning of the year 2,00,000 20.00 2,00,000 20.00

Shares issued during the year - - - -

Shares outstanding at the end of the year 2,00,000 20.00 2,00,000 20.00

. Terms/rights attached to equity shares:

(i) The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of % 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.

(ii) In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all
preferential amounts, if any. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

. Shares held by holding company :

N £ the Sharehold As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
ame of the Sharcholder Number of Shares | (Zinlakh) | Number of Shares | (Z in lakh)

Ladderup Finance Limited 1,02,000 10.20 1,02,000 10.20
The details of shareholders holding more than 5% of the equity shares of the company as at year end are as below :

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Name of the equity shareholder Number of equity | , . Number of equity o .

shares held 7 of holding shares held % of holding

Ladderup Finance Limited 1,02,000 51% 1,02,000 51%
Raghvendra Nath 66,000 33% 66,000 33%
Ladderup Venture LLP 32,000 16% 32,000 16%
Shareholding of promoters

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Name of the promoter Number of shares | % of holding | Number of shares % of holding
Ladderup Finance Limited 1,02,000 51% 1,02,000 51%
Ladderup Venture LLP 32,000 16% 32,000 16%
Note 15 : Other equity (X in lakh)

Other comprehensive
Reserve & surplus
. income .
Particulars : Remeasurement of Total equity
" . Retained
Securities premium earnings post employment
g benefit obligation

Balance as at 1 April 2022 60.00 617.33 (2.40) 674.93
Profit for the year - (5.46) - (5.46)
Other comprehensive income for the year - - (3.66) (3.66)
Balance as at 31 March 2023 60.00 611.87 (6.06) 665.81
Profit for the year - 118.29 - 118.29
Other comprehensive income for the year - - (1.47) (1.47)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 60.00 730.16 (7.53) 782.64

Nature and purpose of reserves:
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LADDERUP WEALTH MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Note 16 : Borrowings (X in lakh)
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Particulars

Secured
Vehicle loan (refer note (i) below) 31.15 -
Less : Current maturities 8.64 -

Total berrowings 22.52 -

(i) Vehicle loan from bank

Vehicle loans represents loans taken from HDFC Bank Limited amounting to ¥ 35 Lakh (2023:Z Nil), Z 22.52 Lakh disclosed under non-
current borrowings (2023 :Z Nil) and % 8.64 Lakh (2023: ¥ Nil) disclosed under current maturities of long-term debts are secured by
hypothecation of vehicle financed by HDFC bank and carry interest rate of 8.9% p.a (2023: X Nil).

|

Note 17 : Lease liabilities (X in lakh)
Particulars As at ABRE
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Non current 124.19 133.75
Current 55.47 38.29
Total lease liabilities 179.66 172.04
Note 18 : Provisions (X in lakh)
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Provision for employee benefits:
Provision for gratuity (refer note 33) 28.35 24.63
Total Provisions 28.35 24.63
Note 19 : Other non - current financial liabilities (X in lakh)
Particulars Asat Asat
2 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
Other payable - 30.00
Total other non - current financial liabilities - 30.00
Note 21 : Borrowings
Particul As at As at
articufars 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
Secured
Vehicle loan (refer note 16) 8.64 -
Total current borrowings 8.64 -
Note 23 : - Other financial liabilities (X in lakh)
Particul As at As at
articulars 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
Employee benefit payable 4191 43.45
Other payable 9.37 52.90
Total other financial liabilities 51.28 96.35
Note 24 : Other current liabilities (X in lakh)
Particulars As at As at
articular 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
Statutory liabilities 33.31 20.10
Advance from customers 21.13 21.73
Total other current liabilities 54.45 41.83
Note 25 : Provisions (R in lakh)
Particul As at As at
articutars 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
Provision for bonus 1.85 1.61
Provision for gratuity 7.80 6.61
Total provisions 9.64 8.21
Note 26 : Current tax liabilities (net) (% in lakh)
articulars Asat Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
ision for taxation (net of advance tax and TDS ) 27.00 1.70
current tax liabilities (net) 27.00 1.7
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LADDERUP WEALTH MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Note 27 : Revenue from operations (R in lakh)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Brokerage & commission income 1,071.57 831.41
Total revenue from operations 1,071.57 831.41
Note 28 : Other income (X in lakh)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Gain on bond transaction 72.02 145.88
Short term capital gain on mutual fund - 2.68
Interest received on bond 4.05 1.18
Interest received on loan 9.65 6.27
Interest received on fixed deposit 0.21 0.17
Net gain on fair value changes 14.16 -
Net gain on fair value of bond 6.06 1.73
Total other incomes 106.15 157.92
Note 29 : Employee benefit expenses (X in lakh)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Salaries & wages 475.57 518.00
Contribution to provident and other fund 8.54 9.02
Office staff welfare expense 13.26 12.17
Total employee benefit expense 497.36 539.19
Note 30 : Finance costs (X in lakh)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Interest expenses on borrowings 1.98 -
Other interest expenses 2.04 1.78
Finance cost on lease obligation 15.63 14.37
Total finance cost 19.65 16.14
Note 31 : Other expenses (X in lakh)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Professional fees 95.30 76.06
Rent 3.53 5.04
Sub-brokerage 26.13 29.51
Business promotion expenses 37.58 28.90
Management service charges 17.82 11.40
Communication cost 4.00 6.18
Electricity 4.14 2.83
Net loss on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss - 1.33
Office expenses 15.28 30.76
Payment to auditors (refer note below 31(a) ) 0.80 0.80
Printing & stationery 3.82 3.10
Financial database services 22.86 22.14
Travelling & conveyance 26.25 29.07
Vehicle maintenance 4.39 5.89
Sebi registration charges 4.34 -
Miscellaneous expenses 11.44 21.04
Total other expenses 285.20 274.06
Note 31(a) : Payment to auditors (R in lakh)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
-Statutory audit 0.60 0.80
-Tax audit fees 0.20
Total 0.80

N
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LADDERUP WEALTH MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements
Note 32 : Earnings per equity share (face value T 10 each)

A reconciliation of profit for the year and equity shares used in the computation of basic and diluted earnings per equity share is set out

below:

Basic: Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the company by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year, excluding equity shares purchased by the company and held as treasury

shares.

Diluted: Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year
for assumed conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Employee share options are dilutive potential equity shares for the company.

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Weighted average number of equity shares of Z 10 each

Number of shares at the beginning and end of the year (in nos.) 2,00,000 2,00,000
Weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year (in nos.) 2,00,000 2,00,000
Weighted average number of potential equity shares outstanding during the year - -
Total number of potential equity share for calculating diluted earning per share (in nos.) 2,00,000 2,00,000
Net profit after tax available for equity shareholders (% in Lakh) 118.29 (5.46)
Basic earning per share (in %) 59.15 (2.73)
Diluted earning per share (in %) 59.15 (2.73)
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LADDERUP WEALTH MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Note 33: Disclosure relating to employee benefits as per Ind AS 19 'Employee Benefits'

Defined benefit obligation
Gratuity

The Company provides for the gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering qualifying employees . The plan provides for lump sum
payments to employees upon death while in employment or on separation from employment after serving for the stipulated period mentioned

under The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972.

The present value of obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each
period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final

Details of defined benefit plans as per actuarial valuation are as follows:

(X in lakh)

Particuiars Unfunded Plan
Expenses recognized in the statement of profit and loss 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current service cost 5.78 6.95
Net interest cost 2.04 1.78
Components of defined benefit costs recognized in profit or loss 7.82 8.73

(X in lakh)
Included in other comprehensive income 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Components of actuarial gain/losses on obligations:
- financial assumptions 0.44 (3.44)
- demographic assumptions - -
- experience adjustments 1.54 8.39
Actuarial (gain) / loss recognized in OCI 1.98 4.95
® in lakh)
Changes in the defined benefit obligation 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Opening defined benefit obligation 31.24 31.85
Transfer in/(out) obligation - -
Current service cost 5.78 6.95
Interest expense 2.04 1.78
Components of actuarial gain/losses on obligations:
- financial assumptions 0.44 (3.44)
- experience adjustments 1.54 8.39
Benefits paid (4.90) (14.29)
Present value of obligation as at the end of the year 36.14 31.24
 in lakh)
Reconciliation of net defined benefit liability 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Net opening provision in books of accounts 31.24 31.85
Expense charged to Statement of Profit and Loss 7.82 8.73
Amount recognised in other comprehensive income 1.98 4.95
Benefits paid (4.90) (14.29)
Closing provision in books of accounts 36.14 31.24
(X in lakh)
Bifurcation of liability as per schedule ITI 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current liability* 7.80 6.61

Non-current liability 28.35 24.63
Net liability 36.14 31.24
* The current liability is calculated as expected benefits for the next 12 months.

Maturity analysis of defined benefit obligation (X in lakh)
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Expected benefits for year 1 7.80 6.61
Distribution (%) 9.60% 9.30%
Expected benefits for year 2 0.94 0.80
Distribution (%) 1.20% 1.10%
Expected benefits for year 3 1.10 0.86
Distribution (%) 1.30% 1.20%
Expected benefits for year 4 1.19 0.96
Distribution (%) 1.50% 1.40%
Expected benefits for year 5 1.30 1.06
Distribution (%) 1.60% 1.50%
Sum.of Year 6 to 10 Year 22.28 21.37

1tP (%) 27.40% 30.20%
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Expected contribution to fund in the next year R in lakh)
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Expected contribution to fund in the next year 7.80 6.61

The following table summarizes the principal assumptions used for defined benefit obligation : (X in lakh)
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Actuarial assumptions
Discount Rate (p.a.) 7.15% 7.30%

5.00% p.a at younger| 5.00% p.a at younger

Withdrawal Rates ages reducing to ages reducing to
1.00%p.a % at older| 1.00%p.a % at older;

ages ages

Rate of Salary increase (p.a.) 6.00% 6.00%

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant
factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

Sensitivity to key assumptions (X in lakh)

Particulars Gratuity

31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
0.5% increase

i. Discount rate 34.71 30.00

ii. Salary escalation rate - over a long-term 36.73 31.80
10% increase

iii. Withdrawal rate (W.R.) 36.39 31.43
0.5% decrease

i. Discount rate 37.70 32.59

ii. Salary escalation rate - over a long-term 35.59 30.55
10% decrease

iii. Withdrawal rate (W.R.) 35.88 31.04

Sensitivity for significant actuarial assumptions is computed by varying one actuarial assumption used for the valuation of the defined benefit
obligation, keeping all other actuarial assumptions constant.

Defined contribution plans

Provident Fund

The Company has recognized ¥ 8.54 Lakh (31.03.2023;  9.02 Lakh) in the statement of Profit & Loss towards contribution to Provident fund
in respect of company employees.

Supreme Court (SC) passed a judgement dated 28th February 2019, related to components of salary structure that need to be taken into account
while computing the contribution to provident fund under the EPF Act. There are numerous interpretative issues relating to the Supreme Court
(5C) judgement including the effective date of application. The Company continues to assess any futher developments in this matter for the
implications on financial statements, if any.

Note 34 : Contingent liabilities disclosures as required under Ind AS 37, “provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets” are
given below: .

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Claims not acknowledged as debts :
Liability in respect of income-tax - 0.32

Note 35: Segment Reporting

Segment Reporting as required under Indian Accounting Standard 108, “Operating Segments” :

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”)
of the Company. The CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the Managing Director of the Company. The Company operates only in one Business Segment i.e. “ Investment Advisory
Services”, hence does not have any reportable Segments as per Ind AS 108 “Operating Segments”. g
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LADDERUP WEALTH MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Note 40 : Leases

The firm has entered into long term lease agreements for premises. The firm does not have an option to purchase the leased asset at the
expiry of the lease period. These are generally cancellable and are renewable by mutual consent on mutually agreed terms.Future lease
rentals are determined on the basis of agreed terms. There are no restrictions imposed by lease arrangements. There are no subleases.

Following are the changes in the carrying value of right of use assets for the year ended March 31, 2024:

(X in lakh)
Particulars 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
Opening balance 166.10 -
Addition 59.06 207.60
Adition /adjustments - -
Deletion 57.89 41.50
Closing balance 167.27 166.10
The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities as at March 31, 2024 :

(X in lakh)
Particulars 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
Current lease liabilities 55.47 38.29
Non-Current lease liabilities 124.19 133.75

179.66 172.04

The following is the movement in lease liabilities during the year ended March 31, 2024:

(X in lakh)
Particulars 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
Opening balance 172.04 -
Addition /adjustments 59.06 207.60
Finance cost accrued during the period 15.63 14.37
Payment of lease liabilities 67.07 49.93
Closing balance 179.66 172.04

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at March 31, 2024 on an undiscounted basis :

Particulars 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
- Less than one year 55.47 38.29
- Later than one year but not later than five years 124.19 133.75
- Later than five years - -

179.66 172.04
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